
                                                                                        Meeting Date: 5/3/2016 
                               Agenda Item: 7 

                                                 
 

 1 

MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF 
THE BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS 

CITY OF FAIRFAX 
CITY HALL, FAIRFAX, VIRGINIA 

May 5, 2015 
 

 
Members Present: John O’Brien Clarke Jr., Chairman 

Ellen Brouwer, Vice-Chairman 
Ed Calabria  

   Robert Matthews 
   Gary Perryman 
             
Staff Present:  Michelle Coleman, Zoning Administrator, and Tina Gillian, Acting 
Secretary.  
 
1. Call to Order: Chairman Clarke called the meeting to order.  
 
2. Opening of the Public Hearing:  Chairman Clarke opened the public hearing at 7:00 
p.m. and explained the procedure for the meeting.  
 
3. Adoption of Agenda:  Approved, 5:0   
 
4.  SU-15030001 
Request of Fairfax Golf, Inc., by Sarah E. Hall, attorney/agent, pursuant to City 
Code Sections 110-843(4) and 110-366, for renewal of a special use permit to allow a 
commercial recreational use (private golf practice facility and instruction) in the I-2 
Industrial District on the property located at 3887 Pickett Road and more 
particularly described as Tax Map Parcel 58-3-((02))-036. 
 
Ms. Coleman presented the staff report which has been incorporated into the record by 
reference.  She stated the applicant is requesting renewal of a special use permit 
originally approved in 2013.  She stated the tenant continues to occupy 2,600sf. of space 
with three parking spaces designated for clients and instructors. She stated there has been 
a slight modification to the hours of operation – the business now opens at 9 a.m. - and 
that staff has no objection to the earlier start time. She stated the applicant is requesting 
renewal of the special use permit without being required to renew it again in the future. 
She stated staff has visited the site during weekday hours and found no issues regarding 
operation of the business during their visits.  
 
She stated staff recommends renewal of the special use permit with the following 
conditions: 
 

1. The applicant shall ensure that interior improvements are in conformance with the 
plans prepared by the applicant, dated October, 2013 and submitted with the 



                                                                                        Meeting Date: 5/3/2016 
                               Agenda Item: 7 

                                                 
 

 2 

original application and with this renewal application. 
 

2. The applicant shall ensure no more than eight clients and two instructors are on-
site at any given time. 

 
3. The applicant shall ensure that practice times and private instruction are 

scheduled by appointment only, and include intervals of not less than 15 minutes 
between appointments in order to control parking demand. 

 
Ms. Brouwer asked for clarification the tenant floorplan has not changed from the 
floorplan previously approved. Ms. Coleman stated the tenant floorplan remains the 
same. 
 
Mr. Matthews asked if the board can approve the special use permit with a time limit for 
renewal that is greater than 18 months. Ms. Coleman stated the board can approve the 
special use permit with a condition for renewal with any time they specify. 
 
Sarah Hall, agent for the applicant, came forward to address the Board. She stated the 
business is going well. She stated the applicant has had no problems at the site. She stated 
the applicant is requesting renewal of the special use permit without a condition to return 
to the board for future renewal(s).  
 
Mr. Matthews asked if it is typical for only one instructor to be on site at any time. Ms. 
Hall stated the applicant can have two instructors on site; however, appointments are 
made so the number of instructors is always known. 
 
Ms. Brouwer asked if the applicant is satisfied with the size of the business and if they 
expect the business to grow. Ms. Hall stated the current tenant space has room for the 
business to grow into. 
 
Mr. Perryman is concerned with parking and does not want to approve the special use 
permit without a time limit for renewal.  He is okay with approving the request with a 
five year time limit to renew. 
 
At this time Mr. Clarke closed the public hearing.  
 
Ms. Brouwer moved to approve the application with the following conditions: 
 

1. The applicant shall ensure that interior improvements are in conformance with the 
plans prepared by the applicant, dated October, 2013 and submitted with this 
application. 
 

2.  The applicant shall ensure no more than eight clients and two instructors are on-
site at any given time. 



                                                                                        Meeting Date: 5/3/2016 
                               Agenda Item: 7 

                                                 
 

 3 

3. The applicant shall ensure that practice times and private instruction are scheduled 
by appointment only, and include intervals of not less than 15 minutes between 
appointments in order to control parking demand. 

 
Mr. Calabria seconded the motion. 
 
Discussion 
 
Mr. Clarke agrees with approving the special use permit renewal without a requirement 
for renewal. 
 
Mr. Calabria and Mr. Matthews agree with Mr. Clarke and do not want to impose a 
condition for renewal. 
 
Motion approved 4:1, with Mr. Perryman voting against the motion to approve. 
 
5.    Consideration of November 4, 2014 Meeting Minutes - 
 
Due to staff constraints, the meeting minutes are not available for approval tonight. The 
board deferred approval of the November 2014 and February 2015 meeting minutes to 
the next regular scheduled meeting date. 
 
6.     Consideration of the 2014 Annual Report -  
 
Ms. Brouwer made a motion to approve the annual report. Motion was seconded by Mr. 
Matthews. Motion was approved 5:0. 
 
7. Staff Comments –  
 
Ms. Coleman announced that Ms. Garcia, current secretary to the Board of Zoning 
Appeals, has left the city to take a similar position in another state. She stated she will 
forward members the date of the next zoning ordinance rewrite presentation. She stated 
there will be no cases to bring forward in June. 
 
8. Board Comments - 
 
General discussion regarding parking in the City of Fairfax, conditions for Sky Education 
approval, trailers and recreational vehicles parked in the City of Fairfax, zoning 
ordinance rewrite, building code permits/requirements. 
 
9. Adjournment - Meeting adjourned (7:55 p.m.) 
 
ATTEST: 
Ann. C. Feeherry  
Ann Feeherry, Secretary 


